M
® Monomoy Regional School District - Monomoy Regional School Committee

k} Meeting Agenda for Thursday, May 26, 2022 at 6:30PM
2 Monomoy Regional High School Library - 75 Oak Street, MA 02645

4:;.

’o"' ln

% LT
This meeting will take place PARTIALLY REMOTELY pursuant to the law signed by Governor Baker on February 16, 2022-An Act Further

Extending Certain COVID-19 Measures Adopted During the State of Emergency, which includes an extension, until July 15, 2022, of the
remote meeting provisions of his March 12, 2020, Executive Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law.

This meeting will be accessible to the Public / Public Comment VIA the MRSD ZOOM MEETING LINK

and be broadcast to Channel 22 as well as live-streamed/recorded to the MRSD YOUTUBE MEETING LINK

A. Call to Order

Vote for Chair, Vice Chair of the MR School Committee

C. MRHS Student Representative

D. Public Comment: Speakers are limited to three minutes; additional time at the discretion of the Chairperson

m

Approval of Minutes
1. MRSC Meeting Minutes: May 12, 2022

-

. Reports and Discussions
1. Proposal for MRHS student trip to Tokyo - April 2023

Strategic Plan Steering Committee - new member appointment
Special Education Parent Advisory Council (SEPAC) Report
Chatham Town Meeting - Regional Agreement Next Steps
Town of Chatham / Stepping Stones parcel discussion

LA

G. Subcommittee, Representatives, Liaison Report

1. Superintendent Evaluation

H. Superintendent’s Report
1. Recognition of Donations, Grants, and other Acknowledgements
2. COVID Dashboard / Weekly COVID Safety Check

I. Action Items

1. Vote on Stepping Stones parcel
2. Declaration of Surplus
3. Presentation of the Warrants

). Adjournment

Authorized Posting Offi
Leah Tambolleo
May 24, 2022

Monomoy Regional School District does not and shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion (creed), gender, gender expression, age, national origin (ancestry), disability, marital status, sexual orientation, or
military status, in any of its activities or operations. These activities include, but are not limited to, hiring and firing of staff, selection of volunteers and vendors, and provision of services. We are committed to providing an
inclusive and welcoming environment for all members of our staff, students, families, community members, volunteers, subcontractors, and vendors.



Monomoy Regional School District - Monomoy Regional School Committee
Meeting Minutes for Thursday, May 12, 2022 at 6:30PM
Monomoy Regional High School Library - 75 Oak Street, MA 02645

This meeting took place PARTIALLY REMOTELY pursuant to the law signed by Governor Baker on February 16, 2022-An Act Further
Extending Certain COVID-19 Measures Adopted During the State of Emergency, which includes an extension, until July 15, 2022, of the
remote meeting provisions of his March 12, 2020, Executive Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law.

This meeting was accessible to the Public / Public Comment VIA the MRSD ZOOM MEETING LINK
and broadcast to Channel 22 as well as live-streamed/recorded to the MRSD YOUTUBE MEETING LINK

Members present in person: Meredith Henderson, Chair; Jackie Zibrat-Long, Vice-Chair; Danielle Tolley; Tina Games;
Jessica Rogers; Terry Russell

Members present in Zoom: Sharon Stout; Nancy Scott
Members not present: Jessica Rogers

Administrators present: Dr. Scott Carpenter, Superintendent; Marc Smith, Michael MacMillan (Zoom), Melissa Maguire,
Joy Jordan

A. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 6:33PM by Chair Meredith Henderson.
1. Roll Call Attendance: Nancy Scott: present; Sharon Stout: present; Danielle Tolley: present; Tina Games: present;
Jackie Zibrat-Long: present; Meredith Henderson: present; Terry Russell: present

B. MRHS Student Representative

MRHS student representative Charlotte Blute updated the school committee with a list of activities at the high school
during the months of March and April. Some highlights include the Harlem Wizards event, the spring musical, the 8th
grade dance, a review of local field trips and trips abroad, student awards and achievements, and information related to

spring sports.
C. Public Comment: None

D. Approval of Minutes

1. MRSC Meeting Minutes: April 14, 2022

MOTION: Tina Games moved to approve the minutes of the April 14, 2022 MRSC meeting, seconded by Jackie
Zbrat-Long.

DISCUSSION: Sharon Stout requested a modification to page 2, section 7 where it reads, “Sharon Stout left the call” to be
changed to “ due to an emergency, Sharon Stout had to leave the meeting”.

AMENDMENT TO THE MOTION: Tina Games moved to amend her first motion to reflect the above, seconded by Sharon
Stout.

ROLL CALL VOTE: Nancy Scott: aye; Sharon Stout: aye; Danielle Tolley: abstain; Tina Games: aye; Terry Russell: abstain;
Jackie Zibrat-Long: abstain; Meredith Henderson: aye

The motion passes with 4 ayes and 3 abstentions.

2. MRSC Meeting Minutes: April 28, 2022
MOTION: Jackie Zibrat-Long moved to approve the minutes of the April 28, 2022 MRSC meeting, seconded by Tina

Games.
ROLL CALL VOTE: Nancy Scott: aye; Sharon Stout: aye; Terry Russell: aye; Danielle Tolley: aye; Tina Games: aye; Jackie
Zibrat-Long: aye; Meredith Henderson: aye

E. Reports and Discussions
1. Westgate Fund Report
Michael Westgate of the Westgate Fund shared with committee members those teachers who have been approved for

funding. Nancy Gifford will be reimbursed for expenses to attend ‘Explore the Solar Sytem’ at the University of Texas this



summer. Also approved to receive funding are Sara Peters and John Dickson whose trips had been postponed due to
COVID. Lastly, Ms. Westgate reported that Principal Adam O’Shea and Cheri Armstrong will receive contributions up to
$2000 towards the purchase of a smart screen at the MRMS.

2, Stepping Stones Area/Parcel; TOC Request to Surplus for Affordable/Attainable Housing

Chatham Town Manager Jill Goldsmith and Director of Community Development Katie Donovan joined the meeting via
Zoom to discuss the possibility of the district/school committee surplusing the parcel of land on Stepping Stones back to
the town of Chatham. The purpose would be so that the town could use the parcel as future site for
affordable/attainable housing.

In discussion, the committee shared their thoughts on the proposal, in particular the need for affordable/attainable
housing. They also expressed some concern about the use of the parcel should it not be ultimately approved for future
housing and discussed the possibility of surplusing the parcel with a contingency that the land only be used for housing
needs and if not, be returned back to the district. The school committee did share an interest in moving this issue
forward and that the Chair and/or Superintendent could proceed with discussing this with the district’s legal counsel for
possible next steps.

3. Report back on Costa Rica trip

MRHS teacher and trip leader Dustan Burns joined the school committee to share highlights of the April 2022 trip to
Costa Rica. Mr. Burns shared photos and video clips of the group's adventures and, at the conclusion of his
presentation, opened the floor to school committee member questions and comments.

4. Strategic Plan Steering Committee - new member appointment

Tina Games volunteered to join the Strategic Plan Steering Committee. ldeally, there should be two Harwich
representatives and two Chatham representatives on a subcommittee therefore this item will return on the May 26,
2022 MRSC agenda in the hopes that Jessica Rogers, not present for this meeting, will also volunteer to join the Strategic
Plan Steering Committee.

5. Summer MRSC Meeting Schedule - Set dates

Via general consensus, the school committee agreed to the following summer meeting schedule: one meeting in July on
Thursday the 14th and 2 meetings in August on Wednesday the 11th and 24th. The August 11th meeting will potentially
be a workshop and not a proper business meeting.

Sharon Stout exited the meeting at 8:05 PM.

6. Third Quarter Financial Report & Third Quarter Transfers

MRSD Business Manager Michael MacMillan shared the below summary of the FY22 third quarter finance report with
the committee:

Overall, the district’s FY22 budget is positive with an unencumbered/unexpended balance of 6.2% or $2,580,407. At the
end of quarter three in FY21, the unencumbered/unexpended balance was 51,550,989 (3.76%). The positive balance is
due to the reduction in school choice and charter tuition fees, savings in salaries due to vacancies or lower than budgeted
hires, and reduced health insurance costs. Revenue is trending above last year, driven by an increase in food service
revenue, ESSER grants and FEMA reimbursement. These trends are likely to lead to a higher amount of excess and
deficiency funds available to offset the FY24 budget.

7. Extended School Year Instructional Assistant Rate
In an effort to attract more Extended School Year Instructional Assistant applicants, the district is seeking to increase the
hourly rate from $20/hr to $25/hr.



MOTION: Jackie Zibrat-Long moved to approve an increase in the hourly rate for instructional assistants working in the
extended school year program from $20/hr to $25/hr. The motion was seconded by Tina Games.

ROLL CALL VOTE: Terry Russell: aye; Nancy Scott: aye; Danielle Tolley: aye; Tina Games: aye; Jackie Zibrat-Long: aye;
Meredith Henderson: aye

UNANIMOUS the motion passes.

8. Approval of new student activity account for Diversity Club
MOTION: Jackie Zibrat-Long moved to approve the establishment of a Diversity Club at the High School and to authorize
the receipt and expenditure of funds related to that activity. The motion was seconded by Tina Games.

ROLL CALL VOTE: Terry Russell: aye; Nancy Scott: aye; Danielle Tolley: aye; Tina Games: aye; Jackie Zibrat-Long: aye;
Meredith Henderson: aye
UNANIMOUS the motion passes.

F. Subcommittee, Representatives, Liaison Report

1. EOY Superintendent Evaluation process and timeline

The Superintendet Evaluation subcommittee met on May 4, 2022 to begin the process of the end-of-cycle
Superintendent evaluation process. Dr. Carpenter shared his self-evaluation and the rubric school committee members
will use when completing their evaluations of him. The goal is for committee members to complete their evaluations in a
timely manner so that Jackie Zibrat-Long can work on the school committee’s summative evaluation for a first reading on
June Sth and the second reading/approval vote at the June 23, 2022 MRSC meeting.

G. Superintendent’s Report
1. Recognition of Donations, Grants, and other Acknowledgements
Dr. Carpenter thanked and recognized the below for their achievements, donations and contributions to the district:

¢  Monomoy Regional High School teacher Rachel Barnes has been selected as the recipient of the 2022 Don Salvucci Award for
Excellence in Promoting Civics Education from the Massachusetts Council for the Social Studies. The award is named in honor of Don
Salvucci, past president of MCSS with a passion for civics education, and is presented annually to one educator in Massachusetts who
has demonstrated exceptional ability in the field of civics education.

e  Aprilis Autism Awareness/Appreciation Month, and Harwich Elementary School has a number of activities led by teacher Dyanna
Rose. Thanks to the generosity of some special donors, every student and staff at HES was given an Autism Appreciation t-shirt to
wear every Friday during the month. They also decorated bulletin boards, shared inclusive boaks, did science experiments, and even
held a robot parade -- all based around the theme of autism awareness! Thank you to everyone that donated but special thanks to
Barrow's Excavation, Jeff Gomes on behalf of himself and Brax Landing, Christine Gagnon, North Chatham Ouffitters, an anonymous
donation made on behaif of the Pilgrim Lodge, Mr. and Mrs. Porter on behalf of The Lanyard and S&L Tree Service. Also a special thank
you to Cape Shark and Esptess Screen Printing for coming through in the clutch with extra T-shirt orders. Thanks to Kerig & Dr. Pepper,
Stop & Shop, Star Market for donating all of the materials needed for Mr. Weimer’s science experiment.

® The Monomoy Regional High School After Prom Committee wants to thank the many businesses, organizations, and individuals that
contributed to a successful After Prom event for the MRHS Class of 2022. This event allowed students to continue celebrating in a safe
manner following their Senior Prom on April 14. Many thanks to the following for donating food, prizes, and/or financial support to
this event: Atlantic White Shark Conservancy; Boston Red Sox; Brax Landing; Dairy Queen; Daniel Brown; Buoys On Main; Cape Cod
Five; Cape Roots Market; Cape Shark; Carmine’s; Castaway’s; Chapman Funerals & Cremation; Chatham Candy Manor; Chatham Fire
Assoc.; Chatham Orpheum; Chatham Penny Candy; Chatham Perk; Chatham Police Assoc.; Chatham Village Bakery, Chatham Village
Market; Chatham Works; Clark Engineering; Atty. William Crowell; Dave’s Garage; Derbyfield Kennel; Dunkin’ Donuts; Ember; Exit
Merch; Family Pantry; Jack Farrell; Freedom Ferry; George’s Pizza; Grand Slam Bumper Boats; Harwich Children's Fund; Harwich Fire
Assoc.; Harwich Police Assoc.; Harwich Recreation; Harwichport Golf; Patrick Hawe; Henry T Crosby & Son; Hyannis Honda; Hyora
Publications; Jay’s Equipment; JW. Dubis & Sons; Kacergis Fishing Corp.; Keurig/Dr. Pepper; Lanyard Restaurant; Lower Cape Dental;
Marion’s Pie Shop; McGrath Post & Beam; Milley Trucking; Mom and Pops; New England Gardens; New England Pizza; Newbury Street
Hair Salon; Nickerson Funeral Home; North Chatham Qutfitters; Panera; Pate’s Restaurant; Pilgrim Congregational; Pine Acres Real
Estate; Pizza Shark; Robert B. Our Co.; Rory’s; Sativa; Schoolhouse Ice Cream; Scribano's; Seal Café; Shoreline Pools; David & Elizabeth
Smith; Snow & Thomson Insurance; Solis; St. Martin’s Lodge Chatham; Stello Construction; Stop and Shop; Subway; Sweet lzzy; Sweet
Tomatoes Chatham; Terry's TV and Appliance; Ulta Beauty; Whiteley Plumbing; and Yankee Ingenuity.

® We also want to thank the many parent volunteers (too many to name!) who helped plan, set up, and clean up the event, Kathy Currie
for her decorating help, and of course all of the chaperones — which included many parents as well as a number of community
members, including an impressive contingent from the Chatham Fire Department! Special thanks to Carolyn Carey, Emily Mitchell, and
the Harwich Community Center staff for their help hosting the event.



2. COVID Dashboard / Weekly COVID Safety Check
Dr. Carpenter provided an update on the number of COVID positive cases the district is currently tracking, the increase of
cases in the community and the affects of COVID on staffing in the district.

3. Harwich Town Meeting - Budget/Regional Agreement update
Dr. Carpenter reported that both the FY23 budget and the amendment to the Regional Agreement passed at Harwich
Town Meeting. They both now have to be approved by Chatham voters at their Town Meeting on May 14, 2022.

H. Action ltems
1. Extended School Year Instructional Assistant Rate

MOTION: Jackie Zibrat-Long moved to approve an increase in the hourly rate for instructional assistants working in the
extended school year program from $20/hr to $25/hr. The motion was seconded by Tina Games.
ROLL CALL VOTE: Terry Russell: aye; Nancy Scott: aye; Danielle Tolley: aye; Tina Games: aye; Jackie Zibrat-Long: aye;

Meredith Henderson: aye
UNANIMOUS the motion passes.

2. Approval of new student activity account for Diversity Club

MOTION: Jackie Zibrat-Long moved to approve the establishment of a Diversity Club at the High School and to authorize
the receipt and expenditure of funds related to that activity. The motion was seconded by Tina Games.

ROLL CALL VOTE: Terry Russell: aye; Nancy Scott: aye; Danielle Tolley: aye; Tina Games: aye; Jackie Zibrat-Long: aye;

Meredith Henderson: aye
UNANIMOUS the motion passes.

3. Second Reading: Policy File JJH; JOA; JJH-R - Field Trips and Student Travel Domestic and International

MOTION: Jackie Zibrat-Long moved to approve Policy File JJH; 1JOA; JJH-R - Field Trips and Student Travel Domestic and
International as presented in the agenda packet, seconded by Danielle Tolley.

ROLL CALL VOTE: Nancy Scott: aye; Terry Russell: aye; Danielle Tolley: aye; Tina Games: aye; Jackie Zibrat-Long: aye;
Meredith Henderson: aye

UNANIMOUS the motion passes.

4. Declaration of Surplus Items: MRHS & HES

MOTION: Jackie Zibrat-Long moved to approve the declared surplus items as presented in the agenda packet for the
Monomoy Regional High School and Harwich Elementary School, seconded by Tina Games.

ROLL CALL VOTE: Terry Russell: aye; Nancy Scott: aye; Danielle Tolley: aye; Tina Games: aye; Jackie Zibrat-Long: aye;
Meredith Henderson: aye

UNANIMOUS the motion passes.

5. Presentation of the Warrants
Accounts Payable and Payroll warrants were presented for school committee member signatures.

I. Adjournment

MOTION: Jackie Zibrat-Long moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Tina Games

ROLL CALL VOTE: Terry Russell: aye; Nancy Scott: aye; Danielle Tolley: aye; Tina Games: aye; Jackie Zibrat-Long: aye;
Meredith Henderson: aye

UNANIMOUS the meeting adjourns at 8:35 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Leah Tambolleo
Recording Secretary



May 12, 2022 MRSC meeting agenda
April 14, 2022 MRSC meeting minutes
April 28, 2022 MRSC meeting minutes
Stepping Stones parcel information
FY22 Third Quarter Financial Report and Transfers
Extended School Year Instructional Assistant Rate
Policy File JJH; 1JOA; 1JH-R Field Trips and Student Travel, Domestic and International
Declaration of Surplus: MRHS & HES



MONOMOY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIELD TRIP REQUEST FORM

Note: This request approved by Principal and Nurse must be submitted to the Superintendent at
least one month prior to US trips, and at least six months prior to international trips.

Coordinating Teacher: MMMD_ Date of Request: 1_1“'_‘, 122-

Other Teacher(s) X b s ) 5) Grade(s): -~ 11
School:  CES HES Ms(HS) Date of Trip:

PV \3 o)
School Nurse Needed on Trip: Yes No) 2 L 23

Other accommodations needed:

Destination:

ToKY 0, Japan S
ALL STOPS/TIMES:
Purpose of Trip — Include Direct Connection to Curriculum Standards:

See atvacned .

Time of Departure: TBD Return Time to School: “TBD
Motor Coach # School Bus # Handicap Accessible Bus ___  Walking — No Bus
(School bus 45 — 2/ MS/HS _ Number of Students: TRD

chool bus 45 — 2/per seat

71 -3 /§er seat ( ) Number of Teachers: T®D ji(g shdonts

LCoach bus 54 seats J Number of Chaperones v

Source of funds (must be indicated prior to approval):  School Budget @u'd:nt Fei)Brant

Budget For out of state and overnight trips please attach ‘

For Day Trips: . @ budget and itinerary. - _

If using the bus company: Hourly rate $33.51. Mileage Ap proval

Rate $.75 per mile. Please attached Google Map

directions w . | _
Teacher < 'Date |

hrs x $33.51 = |
miles x 2 (round trip) x .75 = I

# of Buses School Nurse Date
| 4 '
Total Transportation Costs: $ ' C/; Lo A / fé‘ WZ — -
($ per bus X # of buses P,
rincipal Date

Admission Cost $
Total Cost: $ —

Superintendent Date
Total Cost per student: 3

Approved Not Approved
_ Please emall to: Tonl London alondon i omy.edu 124021 | B




International Field Trip

Destination: Tokyo, Japan

Purpose of trip:

The purpose of this trip is to provide students with the opportunity to travel abroad and experience a
different culture, which will help them grow as both individuals and intellectuals, and become inspired by
the world around them. This trip's itinerary not only exposes students to the art, architecture, and
traditions of historical Japanese culture, but also the contemporary aspects including digital art, design,
fashion, animation, media, and technology- all of which we touch on in the visual and performing arts
department. See highlighted segments in the itinerary to see the experiences that meet various learning

standards below.

National Core Art Standards
Visual Arts Media Arts Music
VA:Cr1.1.a, VAICr2.1.1a, VAICr2,2.8a,
Creating VACr2.2lia
VA:Pr5.1.1a, VA:Pré.1.8a, VAPré. 1 la,
Presenting VA:Pré.1.lla
VARe.7.1.8a, VA:Re.7.1.la, VA:Re.7.1.13, MA:Re7.1.l
Responding VA:Re.7.2.8a3, VA:Re.7.2.13, VA:Re.7 2.1i3, MA:ReB. 1.1l
VARe.7.2.illa, VA:Re8.1.13, VA:ReB.1.1la
VA:Cn11.1.7a, VA:Cn11.1.1a, VA:Cn11.1.lia MA:Cn10.1.1 MU:Cn10.0.8
Connecting MA:Cn11.1.1 MU:Cn11.0.8
Career, College & Life Skills Gained Through World Travel
Patience Empathy Planning Language skills (not just Curiosity
Flexibility Resilience Goal-Setting learning a language) Adaptability
Pers : Cultural Competence | Budget Management | Problem-solving Analytical thinking
pective . .
Appreciation of Communication Creativity Self-awareness and Confidence
DiF:/F:arsity Cooperation Intrapersonal Skilis introspection Street-Smarts




EXPERIENCE JA?PAN

10 or 13 days | Osaka | Kyoto | Takayami | Kanazaea | Tokyo | Extension (o Nagasaki

Japan is an island nation of contrasts. Neon lights pulse and shine
on century-old temples, monks walk alongside anime cosplayers,
and Zen meditation is practiced in the same parks where people
take selfies. It may sound chaotic, but Japan has perfected

the balance of ancient and modem. A better understanding of
Buddhism and Shinto, higher truth, or just a measure of inner
peace await you on this meditative journey through the tranquil
sids of Japanese culture.

EVERYTHING YOU GET:

Full-time Tour Director

@‘. Sightseeing: 2 sightseeing tours led by expert, licensed local
guides; 1 walking tour

@ Entrances: Fushimi Inari-taisha Shrine; Golden Pavilion; Kiyomizu

: Temple; tea ceremony; Shirakawa-go open-air museum;
Kanazawa castie; Kenroku-en Garden; gold-leaf chopstick activity;
Imperial Palace Plaza; Meiji Shinto Shrine; punkura sticker photo
booth; Suginami Animation Museum; Asakusa Kennon Temple;
with extension: Nagasaki Peace Park and Museum; Glover
Garden; Defima Fort; M. Inasa Cable Car; calligraphy activity

@ Experiential lsarning: Zen meditation; Takayama morning market
' chalienge; Akihabara elactric town

)
=¥ experience engages studsnts before, during, and after tour, with

the option to create a final, reflactive project for academic credit.

" Personalized learning guide: Our personalized learning

@, All of the details are covered: Round-trip flights on major

carriers; comfortable motorcoach; bullet train; 8 overnight

@ @ stays in hotels with private bathrooms (71 withi extensiony;
breakfast and dinner daily

gades coremony

Watch videos, read
reviews, and enroll on your
teacher’s Tour Website

This is also your tour number




Anyone can see the world.

YOU'RE GOING TO
EXPERIENCE IT.

As you can see, your EF tour includes visits to the places you've
leamed about in school. That's a given. But It's so much more
than that. Immersing yourself in new cuttures—surrounded by
the psople, the language, the food, the way of life--creates
inspirational moments that can't be listed in an itinerary. They
can only be experienced.

And the experience begins long before you get your passport
stamped and maet your Tour Director in your arrival city. it
begins the moment you decide to go. Whether it's connecting
with other travelers on Facebook, Twitter, or Instagram, or
delving desper Into your destinations with our personalized
learning experiences, the exciternent will hit you long bsfore you
pack your sultcase.

When your group arrives abroad, everything is taken care of
S0 you can relax and enjoy the expserience. Your full-time Tour
Dirsctor Is with your group around the clock, handling local
transportation, hotels, and meals while afso providing their own
Insight into the locat history and culture, Expert local guides
will lead your group on sightseaing tours, providing detailed
views on history, art, architecture, or anything you may have a
questicn about.

When your journey is over and you're unpacking your suitcass at
home, you'll reallze the benefits of your life-changing experience
do not end. They have just begun.

@EFtoursl o b semester abroad fo
the love for travel I discovered on an in’

school #traveltuesday

!

CHECK DUT WHAT A
TOUR IS ALL ABOUT

Watch the videos at
eftours.com/

Your teacher's Tour Webslte

N
fll
Kenszaws [0 /
Takayama (1) o - )Tokyoﬂoril}
Kyora (20 i \""}-
Osaks g
P o
- )

Nagasaki (3¢~

ez lboow gy £ v ovaaaT

Legpmteom o Towa Director
1" ahd expert local guides




What you'll experience on your tour

Day 1: Fly overnight to Japan

Day 2: Osaka
— Meet your Tour Director at the airport in Osaka.

Day 3: Osaka | Kyoto

— Enjoy a walking tour of Osaka’s Dotonbori
Canai Street.

~ Travel to ¥§clo, a city that conjures up images
of sunlit walks around tiered pagedas and quiet
lakes lined with cherry blossom trees.

— Visit Fushimi Inari-iaisha Shrie, located near
the base cf the Inari mountain. Originally
constructed to honor the god of rice, the
elaborate complex features stone foxes, the
known massengers of inarl.

— Enjoy a walk aleng the banks of the Kamo
Gawa River.

Day 4: Kyoto

- Take an expert-ied tour of Kyoto. As the
national capital for over a millennium, Kyoto
offers you a unique glimpse into the tnstory of
Imperial Japan.

- Visit the tranquil Golden Pavilion, a Zen
Buddhist temple painted in delicate gold leaf.

- Vistt Kiyomizu Temple, a Buddhist temple and
UNESCO Worid Herltage Site.

— Enjoy a traditional Japanese tea cersmony.

Day §: Kyoto | Takayama

~ Travel to the small mountain town of Takayama.

- Enjoy free time for lunch.

- Take a deep breath and relax during a guided
Zen meditation experience.

Day 6: Takayama | Shirakawa-go | Kanazawa

- Visit the Takayarna morning rmarket, a market
that has occurred every day for centuries.

- Travel to Kanazawa,

— Make a stop to learn about Eamuiai-style
motintain mchiistivie.

© Optionals and excursions

Day 7: Kanazawa
~ Visit Kunazaws Castle for a look at feudal
Japanese life and architecture.
- Learn the six qualities of the perfect landscape
garden at Kenroku-en Garder.
- Discover how gold leaf is created, then make
your own gold-leaf chopsticks to take home.

Day 8: Kanazawa | Tokyo

— Travel to Tokyo via bullet train.

— Visit the Imperiat Palace Plaza with your
Tour Director.

- Tour Harajuku Fashion Straet and Mep Stinne
with your Tour Director.

- Experionice the power (and fun) of technology
by taking and customizing photos in a purikura,
a Japanese sticker phato booth.

— Spend time seeing more of Tokyo or
© enjoy an evening of karacke.

Day 9: Tokyo

~ Visit the Suginaim’ Animation Museaum,
dedicated to the art and tlechnigque of
Japanese animation.

~ Tour Akihabara's electnc town.

— Visit Asakusa Kannon Temple, the city's largest
Buddhist temple. Hers, restaurants, theaters,
and ciemas surfound a five-story pagoda—a
perfect symbol of Tokyo’s aediusiing past ant
ultrarnodern future.

Day 10: Depart for home

© 3-DAY TOUR EXTENSION

Day 10: Tokyo | Nagasaki

~ Fly to Nagasaki.

- Visit the Nagasaki Peace Park and Museum,

- Reflect on your travels and learn how to fold
a paper crane.

Day 11: Nagasaki

- Tour Nagasaki with an expert local guide.

-~ Visit Glover Garden, a Western-themed
garden and estate built for a merchant who
helped modemize Japan’s industries.

~ Visit Dajima, a complete reproduction of the
Tokugawa-era Port Nagasaki, the only harbor
foreign ships were allowed to enter until the
mid-1800s.

Day 12: Nagasaki | Tokye

- Fly to Tokyo.

- Participate in a calligraphy activity.

— Explore the Shibuya district of Tokyo.

Day 13: Depart for home

: . : tr ip.’

EF Tour! |

g

i
i 1

TOP THREE THINGS | WILL
SEE, DO, TRY, OR EXPLORE
1. -

2

3.



My daughter has gained such an amazing
view of the world and history from this

since I picked her up at the airport. Thank
The casiest ways to e Tl D e

ENROLL TODAY our uids

Enroil on our website THE WORLD LEADER IN
efiours.com/enroll INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION

For over 55 years, EF has been working toward
ona global mission: Opening the World Through
Education. Your teacher has partnered with EF
because of our unmatched worldwide presence,
our focus on affordability, and our commitment to
providing experiences that teach critical thinking,
problem soiving, collaboration, and global
competence. What's more:

Enroll by phone
800-665-5384

~ We always offer the lowest prices
so more students can travel,

- We're fully accredited, just like your school,
S0 you can earn credit while on four.

- All of our educational tours feature experiential
learning activities and visits to the best sites.

. - We're completely committed to your safety.
En rpll‘t.)y mail We have more than 600 schools and offices in
BE tdL{Cﬁxi?ﬁﬂl Tgprs over 50 countries around the world, so local EF
Two Education Gircle staff mermnbers can react quickly and in person
Caﬂ'}bl'ldge, MA 02141 wherever you travel.

- Your full-time Tour Director is with your group

every step of the way on tour, providing insight
about your destinations as well as great local tips.

W7 W
((@Qm
A\

Erfuceton st

2022, JAM23




w7z
(‘@Qm EDUCATIONAL
Ny Z TOURS

International Travel
Program Proposal

Monomoy High School /Amanda Schuermann

/ z
fv o
L r ’
= 4 .‘_ v o
i 4
3 .I"
G
n \ A
|
i
P |

Experience Japan- April Break 2023

eftours.com/JAM




| L o 2 "
| - ATV E = T ) =% 7 -
IHAQVE DUSEeU 1e(

EF Education First is the world leader in
international education. For over 55 years,
we've partnered with educators around the
world to help more than 15 million students
gain new perspectives and build skills for
the future through experiential learning.

Our mission is to empower educators to do
their best work. At EF Educational Tours,
we're working to define the modern
educational tour experience. Our itineraries
are more than places to go and things to
see. We build programs that challenge
assumptions, spark connections, and

inspire curiosity in young students. Students

will expand their knowledge of the world
around them, discover more about
themselves, grow more confident and
independent, and understand new people,
places, and cultures.

We take care of every last detail of the tour
experience—transportation and lodging,
meal reservations and menus, museum
tickets and local tour guides, and much
more. That also includes behind-the-scenes
elements, like safety checks at hotels and
background checks on adult travelers. With
all that taken care of, educators and
students can focus on the bigger picture.

You'll find all the details and more on the
next few pages.

EF International Travel Program Proposal

Safety

Liability protection
Affordability

Educational vaiue
Itinerary specifics

Cost and payment options
Sample hotels

Sample meals

Next steps

This proposal is property of EF Education First and
the educator/schaol for which it was intended.
Distributing, copying, and/or sharing it are prohibited.
The proposal, including pricing, is valid for the
educator, tour, and date(s) specifically mentioned
herein. For additions, subtractions, or modifications,
please contact your EF Tour Consuiltant.

© 2021 EF Education First, For full terms and
Booking Conditions visit eftours.com/be



Safety

Your students’ safety is our number one priority. We would never
send a fraveler to a location we believe to be unsafe—and with our
extensive global presence, our best-in-the-industry experience, and
our close working relationships with U.S. and international authorities,
that's a statement we can back up with real insight. Whether it's a
worldwide pandemic or a sprained ankle, a missed flight or
confusing medical paperwork, we make sure every situation is taken

care of.

*For specific information on EF's response to COVID-19,
visit eftours.com/covid

Worldwide presence

EF’s global presence is truly unmatched. We have staff on the ground 365 days a year in over
50 countries. And we don't just work in those countries—we call them home. EF team members
live in nearly every one of our tour destinations, meaning we have the local knowledge to help
keep our groups safe. That presence allows us to be there to support you on the ground
wherever and whenever you need us.

24/7 emergency support

In the event that anything on tour goes wrong, EF staff is always available to help. Your Tour
Director is your group's constant companion and first point of contact in an emergency.
Additionally, our fully trained support teams are on hand 24/7 to walk teachers through any
issues and provide the resources necessary to get things back on track. Our Safety and Incident
Response Team—comprised of industry experts, healthcare experts, and even former FBI
personnel—is ready to spring into action 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. And when they aren't
directly helping EF travelers, they're actively innovating on and shaping the new worldwide
standards for cleanliness and safety.



This group is fully committed to your school’s trip and the safety of every traveler.

~ This team is strategically based in
our Boston, Panama, Tokyo, and Zurich
offices to accommodate for all time zones.
Available 24 hours a day, every day of the
year, they are trained to react quickly if
travelers need help. The team uses a
combination of extensive training,
simulations, incident response planning,
and previous experience to manage
emergencies. As needed, they can facilitate
additional support for groups on tour, solve
operational issues, arrange assistance from
outside specialists, and liaise with local and
international authorities.

Our support team is available 24/7 to help
resolve any issue, from a missed flight to a
lost passport to more serious on-tour
incidents. They also facilitate
communication between travelers and
families in the event of an emergency at
home. The team is made up of highly
trained and dedicated EF staff in our Boston
and Denver offices who are equipped to
solve problems and answer questions that
may come up, even outside of regular
business hours.

- Assigned exclusively to
your tour for the length of the stay at your
destination, your Tour Director meets your
group at the airport and travels with you
until your departure. All Tour Directors
undergo a background check as permissible
by local law every two years and are
required to participate in ongoing EF safety
trainings. They're the first point of contact in
an emergency and also communicate
information to help travelers stay safe in a
foreign destination. Tour Directors assist
Group Leaders with hotel check-ins,
coordinate meals, facilitate excursions with
local guides, and much more. They're also
culturally connected and expertly trained to
support impactful learning experiences.

- This ifinerary expert is
devoted to the growth of your students.
They are your school's partner, working with
you on everything from finding the perfect
tour and enrolling students to offering
fundraising advice and creating long-term
travel programs for your school community.
They work directly alongside the Group
Leader (a.k.a. local teacher), right up until
the moment of departure to make sure
everything goes smoothly.

- Our team of support
specialists are readily available to walk
families through insurance inquiries,
payment plans, food allergy issues, and any
other topics that arise.

- For every six travelers who
enroll on your school’s tour, your group is
eligible to bring along a chaperone for free
(the first spot goes to the Group Leader).
This allows for a 6:1 ratio of students to
chaperones, who assist Group Leaders with
supervision of students to help keep them
safe.



Protection for travelers
schools, and districts

We undersiand that unpredictable things can happen, either on tour
or before departure. We offer a variety of protections, programs, and
policies to make sure that, no matter what happens, travelers,
schools, and districts are covered. We're doing everything we can to
make planning for the future as flexible as possible.

General liability insurance

All Group Leaders, schools, and districts who travel with EF are automatically added as
additional insureds under our $50 million General Liability Policy, regardless of whether or
not the tour is affiliated with the school. EF’s liability coverage is primary and non-contributory
for covered third-party claims. The policy helps safeguard Group Leaders and their schools for
covered third-party claims related to bodily injury or property damage, which includes providing
a legal defense and covering legal costs for such claims. In addition, all travelers are required to
sign EF’s Release and Agreement, which includes a release of liability of their Group Leader,
school, and school board.

Flexibility to change tours

The world is always changing. And while our belief in the positive impact of travel is unwavering,
it can feel hard to predict what life, here in the U.S. and abroad, will look like several months, a
year, or even two years from now. When you decide to travel with EF, we want you to feel
secure in that decision. That's why these benefits are built into every EF program.

Provided to all groups
We understand that plans can change due to unforeseen circumstances. EF provides

this exclusive program to account for such situations. It provides groups with flexibility to
change the dates and destination of their tours in uncertain times. This program
accounts for such circumstances and can be enacted up to 45 days prior to departure at
the group level for any reason, including terrorism or other world events.

Provided to groups departing before October 1, 2022

in addition to our standard Peace of Mind Program, EF provides an exclusive COVID-19
Peace of Mind Program to account for situations related to the COVID-19 pandemic.
This program is automatically included for all travelers and can be enacted up to 45 days
prior to departure at the group level, while specific options can be implemented at the
individual level.



Provided to all groups
If your child is diagnosed with COVID-19 while on tour, we will coordinate and faciiitate

support services and logistics including translation services, connections with local
health care providers, communication with family, and flights home at no additional cost.

Protection for individual fravelers
Travelers can help protect their investment and themselves from certain unexpected events and

expenses while on tour with the Global Travel Protection Plan and Global Travel Protection Plan
Plus.

Global Travel Protection Plan

Available to all travelers
Designed specifically with EF travelers in mind, this plan provides both pre-departure
and post-departure benefits, including medical expense coverage that may apply on tour

and tour cancellation for specified reasons.

Global Travel Protection Plan Plus

Available to all travelers
To further protect your investment from the unexpected, this plan provides all of the

benefits included in the Giobal Travel Protection Plan as well as expanded cancellation
protection.

Background checks for adult travelers

EF requires all adults (18 years and older) to pass a criminal background check before traveling
on our student tours. This provides a safer tour experience for all travelers and aligns with the
process and expectations of many school districts for adults who volunteer in schools or
chaperone school activities. The secure process, provided by a leading professional provider,
only identifies those individuals who could present a risk to student travelers while on tour



AMAarcdesinilidyvg
_f_.ilrk -}i 4 4'_’5__}' “T !

We believe every student should have the opportunity to fravel.
That's why we're dedicated to providing the lowest prices possible
and giving travelers multiple resources for managing payments.

Tour Consultants work closely with teachers to bulld a tour that's
exactly right for your students. Through discussions with your teacher,
they take into account learning objectives, cost, timing
considerations, and any other factors to craft a tour that's accessible

to as many students as possible.

- Our recommended payment plan offers the ability to break
the tour fee into smaller installments. With most tours planned well in advance, travelers
can enroll for only $95, then pay over a long period of time—often up to 18 months or
two years—with final payment due 30 days before departure. Families make payments
directly to EF, with no payments going through the school.

- Each student has access to their own unique and customizable
donation page. The easy-to-share page makes it simple for friends and family to
contribute a littie something that is automatically applied to the balance of the tour, with
no fees whatsoever.

-~ EF Educational Tours provides $100,000 worth of

scholarships to students across the country every year. Any student is able to apply for
the Global Citizen Scholarship, which is awarded on both a merit and need basis.

New travelers who enroll by June 1, 2022 can cancel for
any reason 30 days after enroliment for a full refund of 100% of the money paid to EF
To be eligible, the traveler must enroll on a tour with a scheduled departure date
between October 1, 2022 and September 30, 2023.



Educational value

Our tours help prepare students for the future by teaching them more
about the world, themselves, and the impact they can have on the
world. Combining the power of experiential learning with the thrill of
global travel, our tours help students:

Expand their knowledge of the world around them
Grow more confident and independent
Understand new people, places, and culiures
Discover more about themselves

To learn more about EF's educational philosophy, visit
hitps://www.efiours.com/our-story/educational-approach

EF is an accredited institution

We echo your commitment to education. Our travel-based learning approach is designed to
blend classroom and experiential learning. This allows us to meet the same rigorous standards
as schools like yours, ensuring students gain valuable experiences that transform the way they

look at the world.

Gl - A )
2 s -
< 2 MER  NCIHA X

Earning credit for new experiences
EF makes it easy for students to turn their tour experience into high school credit, college credit,
or to get a head start on their college essays—all while making their travel experience even

more engaging.

¢ Students in grades 6 - 12 can earn .5 elective high school credit by successfully
completing the final project as part of EF’s Personalized Learning Guide. Tuition is free.

e Students in grades 9 - 12 can earn 3.0 undergraduate credits, along with the
confidence that comes with taking a college course, by completing a series of
assignments and a final research project with our partner, Southern New Hampshire

University—all for just $215.

e Educators traveling on student tours may earn up to 45 free hours toward relicensure
OR 3 or 6 graduate level credits ($285/$450) through Southern New Hampshire
University.



Itinerary specifics

For more robust details, the complete itinerary is attached to this
document. It includes specific locations, each day’s activities, fravel

plans, and more.

The tour program price covers a wide range of services that ensure students have an incredible
experience. It includes all the planning and preparation that leads up to departure, travel and
accommodations, plus logistical support and details once the group reaches their destination.

Price details

= < P o
Evperience Japan

Program Price” F4ETE

Jiabs! Tragvel Fisietion 5185

ariy Entoanran: Cizcau 100
£F's Feace of Lind Program Free
Total for Students {under 20} $4,740
AUt Supglersent’ 8500
Total for Adults £3.24¢



Sample hotels

Every hotel we work with must meet our high standards for safety,
quality, and cleanliness. Hotels are vetted by our team to make sure
they meet our requirements and are subsequently inspected
regularly to ensure they continue to satisfy those parameters. Please
note that hotels abroad may have different amenities than travelers
are accustomed to in the United States.

Here are some examples of hotels students might stay in on tour

Pearl Hotel Ryogoku is conveniently located across from Ryogoku Station, which allows groups
to explore the vast city of Tokyo with ease. Students are roomed in twin accommodations or in
multi-bed suites. Each room has recently been renovated and includes a TV, telephone, air

conditioning, and a hair dryer

The Sobial Hotel is located just a short walk from Taisho Station, near the junction of the
Shirinashi and Kizu Rivers. Guests can enjoy the hotel’s public bath and on-site restaurant.

The Tozankaku Hotel is located nearby Kyoto Station in the Higashiyama area of Kyoto. Each of
the hotel's 131 rooms offers a TV, desks, air conditioning, and traditional Japanese decor
Visitors can also enjoy a meal at the hotel restaurant.



Sample meals

Meals are selected to establish a more immersive cultural
experience and give studenis an idea of how locals eat. Below are
some examples of what travelers can expect at the destination that
your teacher has chosen, but please note that meals can vary from

four to tour.

Japan: Sample Meals
Tempura vegetables, mushrooms, shrimp, fish, potatoes, eggplant and rice

10



Zc0T ‘9¢ AVIN

[IoUNo) AOSIADY JusSIed
uojyeanp3 |epads

|1IoUN0) AJOSIAPY 1UlJed
uoleonp3
|le10ads AOWOUON




As|oo alueydals

As|peag Ajlwig
Si1eyd Jvd3s Aq uollejuasaud

aJinselA essi|aAl Aq uoionpouluy




"PUISIP [00YIS 3411UD 3Y3 W) SRNI|IGeSIP YUM UBIP[IYD JO Satjiiey ||e sjuasadad Ing ‘Jooyas aUo wolj saljiwey
Juasd1da.l 10U SI0P JYd3S € — [19UN0) [00YDS 40 OLd ‘VLd B Se Yons 11sip [0oyds e uj sdnods jualed Jaylo Wo.y JusJayip
SIJVd3ISV 'sainpadoud jeuoiiesado pue smef-Ag Umo si sa1eaJd Yalym Apoq d1jgnd Suluianos-y[es e st Jyd3s ayL

‘Me|
[eJ9p34 pue 31e1S J9pun suelp.tend pue syudsed ‘suapms Jo s1ySu oyl uo doysyJom jenuue 1Byl Uo 19113sIg aY1 yum Sunesadood

pue {swesdoid
uo13eanpa eiads s 10UISIP 8y 40 uoiienieas pue Juswdolaaap ‘Buiuue)d ayy ul 3edidiiied 0} S[RISILO [00YIS YUM Alle|n8as Sunaswi

‘SaLIESIP Y1M s1uapnis Jo Alajes pue uoiieanpa syl 0} utelad Jeyl SI1eW U0 33FHWWOD [00YIS B Suisinpe
101 paliWl| 34 10U Ing ‘apnjoul [feys sanng
"sallied pajsaiajul Jaylo pue (sueld pOg pue sq31) Sa1M|IGeSIP YUM uIp[Iyd 4o syuaied 12113S1p ||e 03 uado sI

diyssaquiay "sOVd3S 03 uoiouny Alojedidizied pue AlosiApe ue yioq susisse MEe| 91e]S S119SNYdesseln "IYdIS e ysijqeisa
03 paJinbau si s11asnyaessel ul 312143s1p Jooyds d1qnd AJaA3 *|1ouno) AJOSIAPY 1udied uonesnp3 [e1nads e si JVdIS v

¢IVd3S 9yl st ieym




"UOIDJISIUIWPY pUb 33131UIWO)

JO0YIS ASHIN 241 Yum bunodjunwiwod pup buisinpp Aq sadinias
pup swpiboid uonpanp3 |pi2ads uayibuaiis o3 induy 41ay3 Buisn
PUuD 43410 Y203 03 S1anB3.1DI BUIII3UUOI ‘SIaAIBIDI BUIDINPS
Aq Aauunof 412y buojo saljiwnf 1ioddns ap ‘saliwbf 115y3

puDb 5331713 U010ONP3T [DI23dS buinia2a4 S3U3PNIS 10§ A2U3LIIAX3

[PUCIIDINPS 3Y1 3oUDYUI 0] SI DV TS ASHIN 3yl Jo uoissiw 3y |

JUsWalels
UOISSI|A



$9JIAI3S UoIleINP? [B123ds UO AJunwwod Aowouo paiaaing
24NY204g JVd3IS e paieat)

S3l|IWe) JYdIS PaIsSa4a1Ul JO 1s]| 19BIU0D PajIdWO)) -

JUBWB1LIS UOISSIW MU padojanag -

smejAg passed pue pasinay .

sal|lwe} Aowouo Joj sSuileaw ¢ p|oH -

3uiuue|d uonisueu |
doysyiom uoprenjeas pue An|iqisy3
auinog pue ‘Yinowje4 ‘Aq Yum paieioqge|jo) -

d31 3ya Buipueisiapun :doysyiopn s1ysiy oiseq A
1

- Jeaj [ooyds zz-Tzor BT
9U31 J0J S3IIAINDY




(%.4'82) ST jooyos ybiH |euoiBey Aolwouoyy

jooyos

(%Sv€) 0E 3ipPpPI [euciBay Aowouopy

(%1€) 12— Aseluawalg yoimeH

(%S°L1) 0L Alejuswie|g weyleyo

sosuodsal /g
'd3| ue yum juapnis auo
uey} aJow aAey noA Ji Aidde jeys e %08y ¢ pusne 43| ue Yum (Ua)pliyd JnoA (S9)op [0oyds 1oy




(%€°01) 6 §m_.mv z

(%2'82) G2

(%2Z'GS) 8¥

09

sasuodsal /g
¢Aowiouoip Aq papiroid sedinies uolzeonpa [e1oads syl 8381 NOA PINOM MOH




uojensuIWPY 1911Sig uonessIIIWPY Jooyds  (Yosads ‘I 4 10) sisideisy | Jsyoee) p3 [eweds 1ayoes) p3 |elsus

ualeox] [l PooO M ofeieay i ded BN lood

(SIEnPIAIPUL 953U} Y1IM 91221UNWILIOD 10U
OpP NOA J1xue|q mod Aue aAed)) 'sienpiaipul Buimojo) ayy AQ spasu s,pjiyo JNOA 03 SSauUBAISUOdSal By} 318l ased]d




PI1Y2 J19Y3 InOge a.ed Jjeis

Spaau s,uaJp|Iyd Suilesw pue Suipuelsiapun
uolleioqe}jod weaj|

UolUaNEe T 01 T

'sawsy ]
juolleonps

|e19ads ul pjiyd JnoA

10} [|]9M BujIom s Jeym




UOoIilu3AIa]Ul pue Juawssasse alelidoaddy

uoliejuswadwi 43 Jo AoeIndoe JaA0 UIB2U0D

yijeay jejuaw pue Alaixue Joj syioddns pue sa1821e41S 940N
S921AJ3S Yoaads aJ0N

SIS |e120s yum djay aJon

[[@M 8uloS jou yiom dnolg

uoliesiunwwo))

sowayy
suoneanps

|e1oads ul pjiyd JnoA
10} [|[9M Supjdom 10U S JeYAA




pooyijnpe
0} pue sieaA jooyds usamiaq Sujuue|d uonisuesy yum dieH

SII1fS [e100S
yijeay |ejusin

djay 34oMawoH

"dwoy 1e djay ued syuaded moy 1noge uoIedIunWwwor)

(sy10dau ssau804d jo apisino)
|0o0Y3s 3e Suiop SI P[IYd2 Moy INOGE UOIIBIIUNWIWOD JU3]SISUO)

éP[1Yd JnoA
10} |njd|ay aqg pjnom suoddns 1eypp



Aanuns Jaai8aied/iualed [enuue 1nNpuod)

Sal[lliey} 109UU0)

sSuilPswW d3| 38 UAIS ainydo.g

Andeded pjing pue siualed aiow yoeay

sdoysyJom paJinbaJs Ja4}o 03 aNUIUOD

sue|d @/n1n4



Aowouowdedas@

yooqgade4

npa AoWouoUWi@oedas

jrewy

TET/Ulewiop/npa AoWoUOW MMM//-Sa11Y

IUSqIM

0JU| 10BUO0D



Town Of Chatham
Department of
Community Development

Town Annex 261 George Ryder Road
Chatham, MA 02833

TELEPHONE (508) 845-5168 FAX (508) 48-5163

SELECT BOARD
AGENDA REPORT

TO: Honorable Select Board Members
Jill R. Goldsmith, Town Manager

FROM: Katie Donovan, Director of Community Development
Aly Sabatino, Principal Planner

DATE: April 7, 2022 (Date of Meeting April 12, 2022)
SUBJECT: Consider Stepping Stones Road Property for Housing

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

At the December 20, 2021 Affordable Housing Trust Fund Meeting, the Trust reviewed several
housing initiatives to prioritize for Annual Town Meeting 2022 and beyond. These housing
initiatives included town owned parcels to consider for housing development, including the 2
+/-acre portion of the parcel where the Monomoy Regional Middle School is located adjacent
to Stepping Stones Road. This area was the subject of a Citizens’ Petition to construct the COA
building. Staff has prepared a fact sheet for this property which is attached to this report.

Page 1 of 3



The Trust, at the December 20, 2021, meeting agreed that other parcels, such as the Town
Owned parcel on Middle Road were higher priorities for Staff to pursue for Town Meeting 2022.
Staff prioritized these parcels for Annual Town Meeting 2022 and are now bringing this site to
the Select Board for consideration.

During this Trust discussion, there was some agreement to have an initial conversation with the
Monomoy Regional School District School Committee on future use of the Stepping Stones
Road property by the School District. Existing affordable housing in the area was noted and it
was suggested that affordable/attainable housing be spread out around Town rather than be
concentrated in one area.

At the directive of the Affordable Housing Trust, staff had an initial discussion with the
Superintendent regarding the future use of this property by the School District and the
potential for housing on this site. The Superintendent suggested that a formal request be
submitted to the Monomoy Regional School Committee. Staff suggests that a vote of the Select
Board to support the recommendation by the Affordable Housing Trust Fund Board of Trustees
and to direct the Town Manager to request an agenda item for the Monomoy Regional School
Committee agenda would be the appropriate action to move forward,

Should the Board consider designating this property for Housing the following would be
required:

1. Discuss with the School Committee and request to use this portien of the
property for affordable and/or attainable purposes.

2. Amend the Monomoy Regional School District lease (separate and distinct from
the Regional Agreement).

Language in the Lease under Section | allowing an amendment and the required
process for the School District to follow:

“If at any time any of the parcels of land with the buildings thereon which
comprise the Leased Premises, cease to be used by the School District for the
Permitted Uses as hereinafter defined, then the School District shall declare the
particular parcel as surplus property and said parcel shall then be excluded from
this Lease and revert to the control of the Town where the parcel is located.”

3. Select Board to declare the land surplus and authorize its use for affordable and
attainable housing.

4. Place an Article on a Town Meeting Warrant to obtain approval to declare the
property surplus.

Page 2 of 3



5. Endorsement of an Approval Not Required Plan by the Planning Board to divide
two acres from the total parcel.

Future Steps if Town Meeting votes to declare property surpius:
1. Conduct a feasibility study on land, determining the community housing goals for

the property with public input (density, rental or homeownership,
clustering/open space, desired minimum buffer)

2. Prepare guidelines for the development including type of housing, target
population, and percentage of affordability, etc.

3. Determine property value.

4. Advertise and seek proposals for development of the parcel.

BOARD ACTION
Consider whether this portion of the Monomoy Regional Middle School Property located
adjacent to Stepping Stones Road should be pursued for affordable and or attainable housing

purposes,

If the Board wishes to pursue the possibility of removing this area from the Lease Agreement
for future designation of this land for affordable and/or attainable housing purposes, direct
the Town Manager to request an agenda item for the Monomoy Regional School Committee
agenda.

Page 3 of 3



Property Information- Stepping Stones Road

Zoning: M

Square Footage/ Acreage:

Approximate Total: +/- 2 acres
Frontage:

Approximate- 614 ft.

Approximate number of bedrooms under current Board of Health Regulations for 2 acres (Please note
that if applying under a 40B Comprehensive Permit additional flow/bedrooms could be available):

Under current regulations for Sewer: +/- 8 bedrooms

Historic Commission: No

Sewer: Yes

Zone 2 (Water Resource): No

Flood Zone/Inland Conservancy: No

Page 1of2



Property Information- Stepping Stones Road

Conservation Commission Review: No
Historic Business District: No

Contours NAVD 88:

I N
2
!
- ) .
: ! B
i it ] - -
» -
o
£
N \
: 56

$8
A\
13
2
B
o“"s-go e
s«v?‘“"- ‘. !D
»
20 . .
il -
N
1w w
,%‘%'-
5, W

Page 2 0of 2

1%



Pl 2
o oiiia3@
) 848
I
F
" % £
(Cossyl Encinamig Ca. i ) 200
I p B 1T ™ sancwann HENDREE « ARCHETYPE, INC.
B H H TOWN OF CHATHAM SENIOR CENTER
I! x STEPPING STONEE ROAD -CHATHAS, WA
y g l< g g N BREET TILE =
g LN 3 g £ g PLAN SHOWING EXISTING CONDITIONS
£




Intermunicipal Agreement
Between
The Town of Harwich and Monomoy Regional School District
for Designation of Exclusive Use Line between Harwich Elementary and the
Cultural Center

This Intermunicipal Agreement (“IMA”) is entered into this __ day of
December, 2018, between the Towns of Harwich and Monomoy Regronal School
District, acting through their respective Boards pursuant to G. L. c. 40, Sec. 4A.

1. Purpose

This IMA establishes the terms under whrch the Town of Harwich
(hereinafter “Harwich”) and Monomoy Reglonal Schooi District (hereinafter
“Monomoy”) will undertake the Exclusive Use Line (herelnafter “Line”) between
Harwich Elementary School in use by M omoy Regional Scheol District and the
Town of Harwich Board of Selectmen for | the purpose of fmahzrng the transfer of
the former Middle School now Cultural Center by establishing an- Exclusive Use
Line within the property of the two facilities and assocrated grounds

2. Commitments

The participating Entltles agree as foJIews

a. The Line‘is be used to desrgnate use only and is not to be intended
tobe used as a property:fboundary for ownership purposes. The
Lme is dlsplayed on Exhibit A attached to this agreement.

b. Monomey agrees to malntam and improve as necessary the
Harwich Elementary side of the grounds consistent with the

) Regional Agreement through its‘Superintendent.

c. Harwich agrees.to maintain‘and improve as necessary the Cultural
Center (former Middle School) side of the grounds consistent with
other property undér jurisdiction of the Board of Selectmen as
administered by the Town Administrator.

d. Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit Monomoy or Harwich from
working together to allow each other use of property (Elementary
School Athletlc Programs) and/or improve grounds or structures
(Castle in the Clouds, Playground Areas or Ball Fields) if by mutual
consent both parties agrees or their respective designees agree.

e. Monomoy shall have peaceful and quiet use of the fields on the
Harwich side exclusively during School Hours for student use to
facilitate the education program of students. Harwich shall not
schedule events on the fields during normal School Hours.

f. Each entity understands that said funding of elements of this
agreement are subject to appropriation by town meeting.




3. Term of Agreement

a. This IMA shall commence upon July 1, 2019 or by whichever is
earlier execution by participating Entities and shall expire on June
30, 2024.

b. The participating Entities may mutually agree to terminate this IMA
prior to the date of expiration or to extend the IMA beyond the date
of expiration.

Town of Harwich
By its Board of Selectmen

Town Administrater Vi
v i,

Data it o Date




Approved by the MRSC 01/10/19

The Intermunicipal agreement between the Town of Harwich and the Monomoy Regional
School District was presented in response to the use of the green space behind the Harwich
Cultural Center formerly the Harwich Middle School. Additional language was added to the

proposal in an effort to clarify the use of those fields by the students of Harwich Elementary

School.

Commitments

The
a.

participating Entities agree as I;allews:

The Line is be used to designate use only and is not to be intended
to be used as a property boundary for ownership purposes. The
Line is displayed on Exhibit A attached to this agreement.
Monomoy agrees to maintain and improve as necessary the
Harwich Elementary side of the grounds congsistent with the
Regional Agreement through is Superintendent.

Harwich agrees to maintain and improve as necessary the Cultural
Ceniter {former Middle School) side of the grounds consistent with
other property under jurisdiction of the Board of Selectmen as
administered by the Town Administrator. _

Nothing in this agreement shall prohibit Monomoy or Harwich from
working together to allow each other use of property (Elementary
School Athietic Programs) and/or improve grounds or structures
(Castle in the Clouds, Playground Areas or Ball Fields) if by mutual
consent hoth parties agrees or their respective designees agree,
Monomoy shall have peaceful and quiet use of the fields on the
Harwich side exclusively during School Hours for student use to
facllitate the education program of students. Harwich shall not
echadule events on the fields during normal School Hours.

Each entity understands that said funding of elements of this
agreement are subject to appropriation by town meeting.

With the additional language, particularly commitments D & E, previous concerns with the
language of the agreement felt satisfied. In discussion, some members did express concern
that, over time, this agreement could potentially change. Mary Oldach, Principal at Harwich
Elementary School, stated again that the children use these fields during the school and after-
school unencumbered.

Terry Russell ask for a motion to move to question. Seconded by Nancy Scott, with all in favor
of moving to question.

Nancy Scott then moved to accept the Intermunicipal agreement between the Town of Harwich
and the Monomoy Regional School District. Seconded by Terry Russell. Yeas: Nancy Scott,
Donna Richardson, Terry Russell, Joe Auciello and Jo-anne Sheehan. Nays: Sharon Stout and
Jackie Zibrat-Long. Motion carries 5 to 2.



LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE TOWNS OF HARWICH AND CHATHAM AND
THE MONOMOY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Lease”) is effective this _1st day of July, 2012 by
and between the Towns of Harwich (“Harwich”) and Chatham (“Chatham™), governmental
entities established under state law and having their principal place of business at 732 Main
Street, Harwich Massachusetis 02645 and 549 Main Street, Chatham, Massachusetts 02633
(hereinafter collectively “the Towns™) and the Monomoy Regional School District, a
governmental entity created pursuant to M.G.L., Chapter 71, having a usual address of 425
Crowell Road, Chatham, Massachusetts 02645, acting by and through its duly constituted Sehool
Committee (hereinafter “the School District”).

WHEREAS, the Towns entered into a Regional School District Agreement on ar about
December 6, 2010 which created the regional school district known as the Monomoy

Regional School District; and,

'WHEREAS, Harwich is the owner of certain real estate and buildings known as the Harwich
High School located at 75 Oak Street, Harwich, MA, the Harwich Middle School located at
204 Sisson Road, Harwich, MA and the Harwich Elementary School located at 263 South
Street, Harwich, MA and Chatham is the owner of certain real estate and buildings known as
the Chatham High School and the Chatham Middle School both located at 425 Cromwell
Road, Chatham, MA and the Chatham Elementary School located at 147 Depot Road,
Chathem, MA (hereinafier the land, the building, and any appurtenance thereto ave collectively
known as “the Leased Premises™); and,

WHEREAS, the Towns wishes to lease the Leased Premises to the School District for a
twenty-year period on the terms and conditions set forth herein, with a right to renew the lease
for an additional twenty years at the option of the School District;

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLEJ; LEASFD PREMISES

1.1  Leased Premiges. The Towns do hereby demise and lease unto the School District
the Leased Premises, as described above except that the baseball field known as Centefo/Baldwin
Little League Field which is part of the Harwich High School property and is shown on the
June 20, 2012 Sketch No L1 attached hereto as Exhibit A shall be excluded from the Lease

The Leased Premises are delivered to the Schoo] District, and the School District accspts,
the Leased Premises in their present condition, “AS IS,” it being agreed that the School District
has had an opportunity to examine and inspect the Leased Premises in all respects, that the
Towns have made no representations or warranties of any kind with respect thereto, and that the




Towns, except as required by law, or as provided herein, shall have no obligation to do any work
on, or make any improvements to the Leased Premises or the condition thereof,

If at any time any of the parcels of land with the buildings thereon which comprise the
Leased Premises, cease to be used by the School District for the Permitted Uses as hereinafter
defined, then the School District shall declare the particular parcel as surplus property and said
paroel shall then be excluded from this Lease and revert to the control of the Town where the
parcel is located. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the present Herwich Middle School may only
be used as a middle school by the School District. If the Harwich Middle School is no longer
needed by the School District to serve as a middle school, the School District shall declare the
Harwich Middle School as surplus property and the school building shall vevert to the custody
and control of the Town of Harwich.

12  Permitted Uses. The School District shall use the Leased Premises for School
District educational purposes.

ARTICLE II: 1)

2.1  Term. This Lease shall commence on July 1, 2012 (the “Commencenient Date™)
and, unless sooner terminated as provided herein, shall expire on the twentieth (20™) anniversary
thereof (“the Initial Term™), with the School District having the right to extend the term of the
Lease for an additional term of twenty (20) years (“the Extension Term™), for a total maximum
term of forty (40) years, by giving the Towns written notice thereof ninety (90) days prior to the
expiration of the Initial Term, The Initial Term and, if exercised, the Extension Term, are
referred to herein as “the Term”,

ARTICLE IIl: RENT

3.1  Paymentof Rent, The School District shall not be required to pay rent to the
Towns for the use of the Leased Premises for the Term of this Lease,

3.2. Responsibility of School District. The Towns and the School District
acknowledge and agree that the School District shall have the sole responsibility with regard to
maintaining the Leased Premises, except es provided herein. Except as provided otherwise, all
costs, expenses and obligations of any kind relating to the maintenance of the Leased Premises,
inoluding without limitation all alterations, tepairs, restoration, reconstruction, and replacements
as hereinafter provided, which may arise or become due during the Term hereof, or thereafter, so
long as the School District or anyone claiming by, throngh or under the School District, shall
remain in occupancy of the Leased Premises, shall be paid by the School District at the School
District’s sole cost and expense,




ARTICLE 1V: UTILITIES

4,1  Dalivery of Utilities. The Towns shall not be responsible for providing or paying
for utilities to the Leased Premises, or for general maintenance of the Leased Premises. The
School District agrees to pay promptly, as and when the same become due and payable, all
charges for water, sewer, electricity, gas, heat, steam, hot and/or chilled water, air conditioning,
ventilating, lighting systems, and other utilities supplied to the Leased Premises during the term
of the Lease, If the School District fails to pay for the utilities furnished to the Leased Premises,
the Towns shall have the right, but not the obligation, to pay the same, and the School District
shall reimburse the Towns promptly upon demand for all costs, expenses and other sums of
money in connection therewith.

42  Additional Utilities. In the event the School District requires additional utilities
or equipment, all costs incurred in connection therewith, including installation, maintenance, and
repairs of the same, shall be the School District’s sole obligation, provided that such installation
shall be subject to the prior written consent of the town in which the real estate is located, and
shall be installed in conformity with plans and specifications provided by the School District and
approved by said town, said consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.

43  School District Not to Bxceed Capacity of Feeders or Wiring. The School District

covenants and agrees that its use of electric current shell never exceed the capacity of the feeders
to the Leased Premises, or the wiring installations therein.

ARTICLE V: ALT. (8)

5.1.  Construction of Improvements, The School District shall not make any
alterations or additions to the Leased Premises without the Towns prior written consent, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, Notwithstanding the
foregoing the parties hereto expect that a new regional High School will be constructed by the
School District on the Leased Premises in Harwich. All such allowed or required alterations or
additions shall be at the School District's sole expense, shall be in accordance with all applicable
laws and codes, and shall be in quality at least equal to the present construction. The parties
hereto agree to cooperate to facilitate the construction and financing of the new High School
including amending this Lease as may be required to complete the construction and renovation.

5.2  Compliance with Laws. The School District shall procure all necessary permits
before undertaking any work on the Leased Premises, including without limitation any structural
alterations, and shall cause all such work to be performed in a good and first-class workmanlike
maoner, and in accordance with the requirements of insurers, employing new materials of prime
quality, and shall defend, hold harmless, exonerate, and indemnify the Towns from all injury,
loss or damage to any person or property occasioned by such work, The School District shall at
all times comply with (i) Massachuseits public bidding laws, and all laws, rules, orders, and
regulations of governmental anthorities having jurisdiction thereof,, in effect at the time of
application for permits for such work; (ii) orders, rules, and regulations of any Board of Fire
Underwriters, or any other body hereafter constituted exercising similar functions, and governing




insutance rating bureaus; and (jii) plans and specifications (which shall be prepared by, and at
the expense of, the School District, and approved by the Towns prior to beginning any work).
The School District agrees to employ responsible coniractors for such work, and shall cause such
contractars to camry workers' compensation insurance in accordance with statufory requirements;
and to canty comprehensive public liability insurance and automobile liability insurance covering
such contractors when on or about the Leased Premises, in amounts reasonably acceptable to the
Towns and naming the Towns as an additional party insured; and agrees to submit certificates
evidencing such coverage to theTownspnorto the commencement of, and during, the
continuance of any such work,

5.3  Liens and Encombrances. The Scheol District shall not permit any mechanios®
liens, or similar liens, to remain upon the Leased Premises for Iabor and material fornished to the
School District, or claimed to have been farnished to the School District, in connection with
work of any character performed or claimed to have been performed et the direction of the
School District; and shall cause any such lien to be released of record without cost to the Towns
within tweaty (20) days after the School District receives notice of filing of same. In connection
with the foregoing, the School District agrees to indemnify, save, defend, and hold harmless the
Towns agaipst, of, and from all costs, liabilities, snits, penslties, claims, and demands, including
reasonable connsel fees, resulting therefrom. If the School District shall fail to discharge such
liens within such period, or fail to furnish security therefor, then the Towns muay, but shall not be
obligated to, discharge the same, and the School District agrees to reimburse the Towns promptly
upon demand for all costs, expenses, and other sums of money in connection therewith, with
interest. All materiaimen, contractors, artisans, mechanics, laborers, and any other persons now
or hereafter, who contract with the School District for the famishing of any labor, services,
materials, supplies, or equipment with respect to any portion of the Leased Premises, are hereby
charged with notice that they must look exclusively to the School District to obtain payment for
same. The School District agrees that it will, on request from the Towns, comply with any and
all reasonable requirements of the Towns with respect to the work performed or materials
furnished by the School District or its agents, confractors, and sub-contractors on the Leased
Premises,

54  Insurence for School District's Work, The School District shall have and
maintain in force comprehensive public liability insurance,, property and casualty insurance,
builder’s risk insurance for any new construction or substantial renovation, which insurance shall
name the Towns as additional insureds. The School District shall also maintain workers®
compensation insurance affording applicable statutory coverage, and containing statutory limits,
All such policies shall comply with the provisions of Article IX hereof,

5.5  Ownmership of Improvements, All capitel and/or structatal alterations and
additions made by the School District shall become the exclusive property of the town in which
the real estate is located upon completion. All other nonstructural alterations and additions made
by the School District that are not affixed to the Leased Premises or can be removed without
material damage, shall remain the exclusive property of the School District. The School District
may at any time, at its sole option, remove any such alteration or addition, provided that removal
does not damage the Leased Premises, and that the School Distriot restores the Leased Premises
fo the same conditions that existed prior to such alteration or addition.




ARTICLE V1: USE OF D P ES

6.1  Permitied Uses. The School District shall use the Leased Premises solely for the
Permitted Uses. The School District shall keep the Leased Premises in good ordet, reasonable
wear and tear and damage by fire or other casualty only excepted, and shall not commit or permit
the School District's servants, agents, or invitees to commit waste to the Leased Premises. The
School District agrees not to erect any signs on the Leagsed Premises, including on the exterior of
the buildings, without the prior written consent of the town in which the real estate is located,
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

6.2 if imergencies, The Towns reserve the right
to use the Leased Prenusos, inﬂm case of emergenmes officially declated by any public body for
any use normally associated with such emergencies (emesrgency shelters, storage of emergency
supplies, etc.), free of any charges by the School District, The Towns and the School District
shall, upon execution of this Lease, develop and approve a policy defining the use of the Leased
Premises for emergencies.

6.3  Use of Leased Premises by Towns for Towns-wide Meetings, The Towns reserve
the right to use the Leased Premises for town-wide mestings, including annual and special town
meetings. The Towns shall reimburse the School District for any additional costs directly related
to the use of the Leased Premises by the Towns, The Towns and the School District shall, upon
execution of this Lease, develop and approve a policy defining the use of the Leased Premises
for town-wide meetings and reimbursemant for costs..

School Dlstnct acknowledges that no trade oroocupation shall be conducted on the Leased
Premises, or use made thereof, that will be unlawful, improper, offensive, or contrary to any
federal, state, or local laws, regulations, codes and ordinances, including, but not limited to,
those that relate to health and safety, and those of the Board of Fire Ingurance Underwriters.
Without limiting the genexality of the foregoing, the School District shall not bring, or permit to
be brought or kept, on the Leased Premises, or elsewhere on the Leased Premises, any
hazardous, toxic, inflammable, combustible, or explosive fluid, material, chemical, ar substance,
including without limitation any item defined as hazardons pursuant Chapter 21E of the
Massachnsetts General Laws and federal and other state laws (“Hazardous Substances™). The
School District hereby agrees to indemnify and hold hermless the Towns, and those claiming by,
through, and under the Towns, from and against any and all liability, loss, demage, costs,
expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses), causes of
action, suits, claims, demands, or judgments of any nature in any way suffered, incurred, or paid
as a result of any release or threatened release of Hazardous Substances on or from the Leased
Premises that is caused or exacetbated by the School District, its agents, employees, contractors,
representatives, or invitecs, except to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the
Towns, The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the
Lease,




6.5  Assignment and Subleasing. The School District shall not assign, sublet, or
underlet r (collectively referred to as "Transfer”) this Lease without the Towns prior written
consent, which conseot shall not be unreasonably withheld , conditioned or delayed .. Consent
by the Towns, whether express or implied, to any Transfer shall not constitute a waiver of the
Towns' right to prohibit any subsequent Transfer, Asnsed herein, the term "assign” or
"assignment” shall be deemed to include, without limitation, any transfer of the School District's
interest in the Lease By operation of law.

ARTICLE VII: MAINTENANCE
7.1, School District’s Responsibility, The School District shall be responsible, at its

sole expense, for the general maintenance of the Leased Premises, except as provided herein,
The School District shall keep the Leased Premises, including, withont limitation, the electrical
fixtures, windows, halls, stairwells, lavatories, the landscaping, the parking areas of the Leased
Premises, ‘all pipes, wiring and lighting, all plumbing and utility lines serving the Leased
Premises, the boilers and the heating and ventilating system and the fire protection equipment
and gystems serving the Leased Premises, in good and safe order, condition and repair, excepting
only reagonable nse and wear, and damage by fire or other casualty, ‘The School District shall
also, at its sole expense, keep and maintain the Leased Premises and all sidewalks, curbs and
drives on or adjoining the same in a clean and orderly condition, free of dirt, rubbigh, and
unlawfial obstructions. The School District shall not permit the Leased Premises to be
overloaded, damaged, stripped, or defaced, nor suffer any waste. The School District shall be
responsible for removing trash from the Leased Premises, and the collection and disposal
thereof. The School District shall not allow rubbish or trash to accumulate on or about the
Leased Premises. The School District agrees to keep, operate, use and maintain every part of the
Leased Premises in conformity with all requirements of the law and applicable fire underwriting
and related regulations, and to do all other wotk necessary to comply with the foregoing
covenant.

72 Towns’ Responsibility. . The Towns shall be responsible for removing snow and
ice from the driveways and parking areas for the Leased premises within their respective town,
while the School District shall be responsibie for removing snow and ice from the sidewalks and

7.3 School District’s Failure to Maintain, If the School District shall fil to keep the

Leased Premises in the condition required herein, or if repairs are required to be made by the
 School District pursuant to the terms hereof, within thirty (30) days after notice by cither

Harwich or Chatham (or without notice in any emergency, immediately threatening life or
property), Harwich or Chatham shall have the right (but shall not be obligated) to make such
repeits or replacements, or perform maintenance wotk or any other work required of the School
District pursuant to this Lease, and charge the reasonable cost thereof to the School District, with
interest,




ARTICLE VII}: INDEMNIFICATION: RELEASE,
8.1 Indemnification.

To the extent permitted by law, the School District shall, during the term hereof, assume
and maintain exclusive control of the Leased Premises and defend, indemnify, and save harmless
the Towns from and agninst all claims, expenses, or liability of whatever nature arising from any
act, omission, or negligence of the School District, the School District's contractors, agents,
employees, customers, and inyitees, or anyone claiming by, through, or under the School
District, or arising, directly or indirectly, from any accident, injury to any person, or to the
property of any person, occcurring after the School District enters the Leased Premises , and until
the end of the term of this Lease and, thereafter, so long as the School District occupies the
Leased Premises, or arising from any accident occurring outside the Leased Premises, but within
the general area of the Leased Premises, where such accident, injury, or damage results, or is
claimed to have resulted, from any act, omission, or negligence on the part of the School District
or the School District's contractors, agents, employees, customers, and invitees, or anyone
claiming by, through, or under the School District,

The foregoing indemnity and hold harmless agreement shall include indemnity against all
reasonable costs, expenses, and liabilitiea incurred in or in connection with any such claim or
proceeding brought thereon, including reasonable attorneys® fees, and the defense thereof with
counsel acceptable to the Towns, or counsel selected by an insurance company that hes accepted
liability for any such claim.

82  Releage. The School District agrees to use and ocoupy the Leased Premises at the
School District's own risk, and, except for liabilities or losses resulting from the negligent acts or
omissions of the Towns or either town, the Towns shall have no responsibility or liability for any
loss or damage to fixtures, or other personal property of the School District, or any person
claiming by, through or under the School District. Without limitation, the School District agrees
that the Towns shall not be responsible or liable to the School District, or those claiming by,
through or under the School District, for any loss or damage resulting to the School District or
those claiming by, through or under the School District, its or their property from the breaking,
bursting, stopping, or leaking of electric cables and wites, and water, gas, or steam pipes.

The provisions of this Article shall survive any termination of this Lease.

ARTICLE IX: INSURANCE

9.1  School District's Insurance. The School District shail obtain and keep in force at
its own expense so long as this Lease remains in effect, and thereafter so long as the School
District, or anyone claiming by, through or under the School District, uses or occupies the
Leased Premises or any part thereof, policies of insurance for the benefit of the School District
and the Towns, in the amounts, and in the manner and form set forth in this Section; provided,
however, that amounts of insurance coverage may from time to time be increased. The School
District shalf furnish certificates evidencing each such insurance coverage to the Towns prior to




the execution of this Lease naming the Towns as an additional party insured (to the extent such
insurance is.appropriate at such tine), and providing that the insurer shall give the Towns written
notice at least thirty (30) days in advance of any termination, expiration, or any and all changes
in coverage. The kinds and amounts of such insurance coverage shail not be less than the kinds
and amounts designated herein, and the School Distriot agrees that the stipulation herein of the
kinds and minimum amounts of insurance coverage, or the acceptance by the Towns of
certificates of insurance indicating the kinds and limits of coverage, shall in no way limit the
lisbility of the School District to any such kinds and amounts of insurance coverage.

(8  General Liability Insurance: A commercial general liability policy insuring
against claims for damages for bodily injury or death occurring upon, in, or ebout the Leased
Premises, such insurance to afford protection in limits of not less than $1,000,000 in respect to
personal injury or death to any one person, and $3,000,000 in respect to personal injury or-death
to any nuraber of persons in any one occurrence; and $1,000,000 for property damage. Such
comprehensive general liability insurance may be effected by a policy or policies of blanket
insurance which may cover other property in addition to the Leased Premises, provided that the
protection afforded thereunder shall be no less than that which would have been afforded under a
separate policy ar policies relating only to the Leased Premises, and provided forther that in all
other respects any such policy shall comply with the other provisians of this Article IX. The
Towns, its officers, agents, servants, and employees shall be named as additional insureds.

()  Property Insurance: A commercial property policy covering the buildings and
improvements thereon, in an amount equal to at least ane hundred percent (100%) of the
replacement cost of such property shall be obtained and maintained by the School District, at its
own expense, The Towns, its officers, agents, servants and employees shall be named as
additional insureds,

()  Workers' Compensation [nsurence: The School Distriot and any subtenants, as
applicable, shall provide Workers’ Compensation Insurance required by law, and Employer’s
Liability insurance for at least the amounts of iability for bodily injury by accident of $100,000
each accident; bodily injury by disease for each employee of $100,000; and a bodily injury by
diseass policy limit of $500,000; or such greater amount as may be required from time to time by
the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts

(@)  Umbrella/Excess Lisbility Insurance: An Umbrella/Excess Liability insurance

policy on an occurrence basis “following form” of the primary coverage with a limit of liability
of $5,000,000.00 shall be obteined and mainteined by the School District, at its own expense,
The Umbrella/Excess Liability insurance policy shall include, but not be limited to, the following
coverages for bodily injury, property damage, and personal injury: (i) Leased Premises ~
Operations Liability; (ii) Contractual Liability; (fif) Automobile Liability for owned, non-owned,
and hired vehicles, The Towns, its officers, agents, servants and employees shall be named as
additional insureds.

(e)  Should the School District choose to make improvements to the building as
discussed in Section V1, the School District will be required to provide the town where the
building is located, evidence that the School District has required its contractors to maintain: @




worker’s compensation insurance in the amounts required by law (or reasonably comparable
insurance if such insurance is no longer available); (if) builder’s risk insutance (or such
reasonably comparable insurance) on an “all risk” basis (including collapse) insuring against
casualty to such construction for the full replacement value of the work performed, and the
equipment, supplies, and materials fumished and stored; (iii) automobile liability insurance in the
minimum amounts required by law, with limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence for property damage and $2,000,000 combined single limit; (iv) Employer’s Liability
Insurance affording protection in the amount of not less than $500,000 per accident and
$500,000 for disease; (v) public liability insurance within limits in an amount not less than
$3,000,000 comprehensive general liability total, with a limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence; and
(vi) Professional/Environmental Impairment Liability Insurance providing coverage for
environmental contamination, bodily injury, and/or property damage arising out of acts and
omissions of the School District or its contractors, employees, or agents in the performance of
the Permitted Uses, or any other activities or failures to act, at or with respect to, the Leased
Premises in the amount of $1,000,000 for each claim and $1,000,000 in the aggregate (which
ingurance, unlike the other insurance noted above, may be made on a claims made basis). The
School District shall require that the Towns, and its officers, agents, servants, and employees be
named as additional insureds on &il sub-tenant’s, subcontractor’s, and independent contractor’s
insurance, excluding Worker's Compensation.

The Towns shall have the right to require the School District to increase such limits
when, during the term of this Lease, minimum limits of lability insurance commonly and
customarily carried on properties comparable to the Leased Premises by responsible owners or
tenants are more or less generally increased, it being the intention of this sentence to require the
School District to take account of inflation in establishing minimum limits of liability insurance
maintained from time to time on the Leased Premises,

9.2  Personal Property. The School District agrees that the Towns shall have no
responsibility or liability for any loss ot damage ot injury o or from any canse whatsoever,
including theft or otherwise, of fixtures, improvements, or other personal property, of the School
District, unless caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the Towns or either town, The
School Distriot agrees that it shall continuously keep its fixtures, merchandise (if any),
equipment, and other personal property from time to time located in, on, or about the Leased
Premises, and all leasehold improvements to the Leased Premises constructed or installed by the
School District, insured by reputable, duly licensed insurance companies against loss ar damage
by fire, with the usual extended coverage endorsements. Within a reasonable time after the
School Disttict enters the Leased Premises, and no Iess often than annually thereafier, and at any
other time upon the request of Towns, the Schoo) District shall furnish to the Towns evidence of
such continuous insurance coverage, satisfactory to Towns. It is understood and agreed that the
School District assumes all risk of damage o its own property arising from any cause
whatsoever, including, without limitation, Joss by theft or otherwise.

9.3, General Requirements. The Towns shall be named as an additional insured on all
insurance policies. All required insurance shall be written with such companies qualified to do
business in Massachusetts as the School District shall select, and the Towns shall approve, which
approval the Towns agree not to unreasonably withhold, Without limiting the Towns' other




tights under any other provisions of this Lease, if the School District shall fail to keep the Leased
Premises insured asprov:dedherem, and if such failure shall continue for 2 period of ten (10)
days following written notice by the Towns to the School District thereof, then the Towns ot
either town, without further notice to the School District, may take out and pay for such
insurance, and the amount of such payment shall become due and payable to Towns or either
town on demand.

The School District hereby waives any and all rights of recovery that it might otherwise
have against the Towns, its agents, employees, and other persons for whom the Towns may be
responsible, for any loss or damage to the School District’s property or improvements on the
Leased Premises that are either required to be insured under the tarms of this Lease, or that the
School District, in the absence of any such requirement, elects fo insure, notwithstanding that the
loss or damage may result fiom the negligence, willful act, or default under the terms of this
Lease, by the Towns, its agents, employees, conteactors, or other persons for whom the Towns
may be responsible.

ARTICLE X: CASUALTY: EMINENT DOMAIN

(8)  For the purposes of this Article X, “substantial part” shall be defined as that
portion of the Leased Premises which, if damaged ot taken by eminent domain, would materially
affect the use of the Leased Premises for the Permitted Uses,

()  Ifasubstantial part of the Leased Premises shall be destroyed or damaged by fire
or other casualty and cannot be repaired within a reasonable period of time, or if a substantial
part of the Leased Premises shall be taken by any public or quasi-public agency or authority
including the Towns, for any public or quasi-public use under governmental law, ot by right of
eminent domain, and the taking would materially interfere with the use of the Leased Premises
for the Permitted Uses, then this Lease shell amended to exclude the affected property from the .
Lease on such terms as are acceptable to the Towns and the School District.

(c) K any part of the Leased Premises is damaged by fire or other casualty, the School
District shall apply available insorance proceeds and shall repair and restore the Leased
Premises, to the conditions prior to such damage or destruction.. The School District shall meke
such repairs within a reasonable time, to the extent of its insurance proceeds, and consistent with
the School District’s’s budgetary appropriation and borrowing requirements, and its obligation to
comply with legel requirements relating to public building projects and public procurement,

(d) Intheevent of a taking by eminent domain, the Towns shall have, and hereby
reserves and excepts, and the School District hereby grants and assigns to Towns, all rights to
recover for damages to the Leased Premises and the leasehold interest hereby created, and to
compensation accrued, or hereafter to accrue, by reason of such taking or damage. The School
District covenants to deliver such further assignments and assurances thereof as the Towns may




from time to time request, hereby itrevocably designating and appointing either Harwich or
Chatham as its attorney-in-fact to execute and deliver in the School District's name and behaif all
such further asgignments thereof, Nothing contained herein shall be construed to prevent the
School District from prosecuting in any condemnation proceedings a claim for the value of any
of the School District's usual trade fixtures installed in the Leased Premises by the School
District at the School District's expense, and for relocation expenses, provided that such action
shall not affect the amount of compensation otherwise recoverable hereunder by the Towns from

the taking authority.

ARTICLE XI: T TION:

In the event that the School District shall default in the observance or performance of any
of the School District’s covenants, agreements, or obligations hereunder, and such default shall
not be catrected within thirty (30) days after written notice (or any shorter period, if specified
herein),Harwich and Chatham shall have the right thirty (30) days thereafter, while such default
continues, to re-enter and take complete possession of the Leased Premises located within their
town, to declare the Term of this Lease ended, and remove the School District’s effects, without
prejudice to any other remedy that may be available to either Harwich or Chatham. To the extent
permitted by law, the School District shall indemnify the Towns against all payments that the
Towns may incur by reasan of such termination during the residue of the Term which obligation
shall survive termination of this Lease.. If the School District shall default, after reasonable
notice thereof, in the observance or performance of any conditions or covenants on the School
District’s part to be performed or observed by virtus of any of the provisions of any provision of
this Lease, the Towns, without being under any obligation to do so, and without thereby waiving
such defiult, may remedy such default for the account, and at the expense of, the School District.
If Harwich or Chatham make any expenditures, or incur any obligstions for the payment of
money in connection with the School Distriot’s default, including but not kmited to, reasonable
attorneys’ fees in instituting, prosecuting, or defending any action or proceeding, such sums paid,
or obligations incurred, shall be paid to Harwich or Chatham by the School District.

Without limiting any of the Towns’ rights and remedies hereunder, and in addition to all
other amounts the School District is otherwise obligated to pay, it is expressly agreed that the
Towns shell be entitled to recover from the School District all costs and expenses, including
reasonable attorneys® fees, incurred by the Towns in enforcing this Lease from, and after the
School District’s default.

TICLE XIT: MISCELLANEOUS

12.1  Changes in Lease. None of the covenants, agreements, provisions, terms, and
conditions of this Lease shall in any manner be changed, altered, waived, or abandoned, except
by & written instroment signed, sealed, and mutually agreed upon by all the parties hereto, and
approved as roquired by law. Such instrument shall not be void for want of consideration.




122 Quiet Enjoyment. 'I'heannsherebywmantand covenant that the School
District shall have peacefal and quiet use and possession of the Leased Premises without
hindrance or interruption on the part of the Towns, or by any other person(s) for whose actions
the Towns are legally responsible, o by any person claiming by, through or under the Towns,
except as herein provided.

12.3 Towns’ Enfry. The Towns or iis agents may, at reasonable times and without
interfering with the School District's business operations, enter the I.eased Premises from time to
time 1o make repairs, or {o inspect the Leased Premises, The Towns shall give the School
District & minimum of twenty-four (24) hours notice of such visits, provided however that the
Towns may enter the Leased Premises at any hour, and without prior notice, in the cese of an
emergency affecting the Leased Premises,

124 Yield Up at Termination of Leage. The School District shall, at the expiration or
other termination of this Lease, remove all the School District's effects from the Leased
Premises. The School District shall deliver the I.eased Premises to the Towns in the condition in
which the School District is required to maintain the same, as set forth in this Lease, reasonable
wear and tear excepted, and fire and other casualty excepted.

12.5 Holding Over. If the School District, or auyone claiming under the School
District, shall remain in possession of the Leased Premises, or any part thereof, after the
expiration of the Term hereof, without any agreement in writing between the Towns and the
School District with respect thereto, the person remaining in possession shall be deemed the
tenant at sufferance, After acceptance by the Towns of any payments made under this Lease, the
person remaining in possession shall be deemed the tenant from month-to-month, subject to the
provisions of this Lease insoffr as the same may be made applicable to the tenant from month-to-
month, which occupancy or use may at any time be terminated by either party by one (1)
month’s written notice to the other party.

Liability. Ttheaseshallbmdandmmewﬂxebeneﬁtofthspuuesheremandtherrapecuve
representatives, successors, and assigns. All covenants, agreements, terms, and conditions of this
Leage shall be construed as covenants running with the land, ThisLeaseco:minstheentiro
agreement of the parties, and may not be changed or modified, except by a writien instrument in
accordance with the provisions herein, This Lease shall be governed by the laws of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The provisions of those laws shall not be deemed waived by
any provision of this Lease,

The failure of either party to seek redress for violation, or to insist upon the strict
performance of any covenant ot condition of this Lease, shall not prevent a subsequent act,
which would have originally constituted a violation, from having all the force and effect of a
violation. No provision of this Lease shall be deemed to have been waived by either party unless
such waiver is in writing and signed by the party to be bound thereby.




No mention in this Lease of any specific right or remedy shall preclude the Towns or the
School District from exercising any other right, or from having any other remedy, or from
maintaining any action to which it may otherwise be entitled either in Iaw or in equity.

No official, employee, or consnltant of Harwich or Chatham shall be personally liable to
the Schoo! District, or any successor in interest, or person claiming through or under the School
District, in the event of any defanlt or breach, or for or on account of any amount which may be
ar become dus, or on any claim, cause or obligation whatsoever under the terms of this Lease, or

any amendment or extension entered into pursuant hereto.

12.7 Notice, Any notice relating to the Leased Premises. or to the accupancy thereof,
shall be in writing, and shall be deemed duly served when mailed by registered or certified mail,
postage prepaid, addressed to the other party at the addresses first listed above, or at such other
addresses as the parties may from time to time designate by written notice to the other party.

12.8  Early Termination by School District. The School District shall have the right to
terminate this Lease prior to the expiration of the Lease Term, provided that the School District
is not in default, and provided thet the School District gives to the Towns twelve (1 2) months
written notice of its intent to terminate the Lease,

12.9  Early Tetmination by Towns. Harwich or Chatham shall have the right to
terminato this Lease prior to the expiration of the Lease Temn if eitber Town withdraws from the
School District as provided in the Regional School District Agreement between the parties.

1210 Termination of the School Disiricl. In the event that there is a termination of the
School District for any reason, then this Lease shall terminate on the effective date of the
termination of the School District, :

ARTICLE X\0: SEVERABILITY

13.1  Sevetability. I any provision of this Lease is declared to be illegal,
unenforceable, or void, then both parties shall be relieved of all obligations under that provision,
provided, however, that the remainder of the Lease shall be enforced to the fullest extent
permitted by law.,




LiL] IIG 1]
SHERE O

fioutt Vernon Group, .
£ NegXY-YI 0

200 Harvard IsSq ]
Wekeflald, MA 01880 , SCALE: 1"=80"
MONOMOY REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DATE: JUNE 20, 2012
;g} g}g-gggg; SKETCH TITLE: LEASED / LICENSED AREA DRAWN BY: JAM
www.nivgarchiltects.com  PREPARED BY MARSHALL/GARY LLC SKETCH NO. 11

X?d T8:PY €108/¥0/0T

/200
“o EI'IDIMHVH 30 N0l 6EESZEPBAS 2561 ATBZ/bB/8T (a3AI303




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, having authorized the respective Chaits to sign on the
party’s behalf, agree as indicated by the signatures below.

Town of Harwich, Monomoy Regional School District,
by its Board of Selectmen Chair, by its the School District Chair,
duly authorized: duly authorized:

(Fnbd 40 Gl g,mo/m

ﬁc] [ Q (ﬂ I“Qﬁ@ﬂ
Name printed ame printed

Jofi5 /i
Date/ /

Date

Approved as to form:

Towns Counsel Sighature Date

Town of Chatham,
By its Board of Selectman Chuir,
Duly aunthorized;

W

Froffe o€ SELDI o)
Name Printed

‘a3 /)2
Dats

Approved as to form:

Town Counsel Signature Date




peofdn ojoyd Joj ¢ pue ¢ safed aas aseald

ajes 002$ 1 SOQ61 | oletapoy uouen 9sua| pue esowe)
( JeAowsau Jo 1500 JuosI3
[eyow delog / sjeg snuiw anjea) o$ | SYO8pP € éS0961 4004 [elaus) USAQ >99( 8fdu) usyopy
(+a8euey] ssauisng {uonnewnsy jo
31 Aq pajajdwod aq 03) 924n0s) anjep aseyaing I2poiN
UOIJY PopUIWWOIY pajewnsy Amnuenp JO Jeap uonipuc) ) N vondussag
g ON[T say [ 33)wwo) [ooyss Aq panosddy 3SN UONLISILUIWIPY 104

€c02/eC/S :=eq

sjerajenl snjding jo jesodsiq 12111s1Q [00YIS jeuoiSay Aowouoy

:a1eq

Jooyos ajppIN Jeuoibay Aowouopy

AWDN ULid

8SRILILIOY [oOYISAUBpUBIULIRANG

SWON JuLd

uefiiinoei [1seyatin

: (s) wayl Jo uonero aLNY

101 palywgns

‘wJdo4 ay3 Sunsidwo) |enpiAipul Jo awey



Monomoy Regional School District Disposal of Surplus Materials

Please provide below photographs of the items listed above,

item 1: OQvens

ltem 2: Camera and lense

Click below to insert photo

Click below to insert photo

Item 3:

. Click below to insert photo

... Click below to insert photo

4

item 5:

Item 6:

Click below tg insert photo

_Click below to insert photo




